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State of Idaho /7

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES

1301 North Orchard Street, Statehouse Mail, Boise, Idaho 83720-9000
Phone: (208) 327-7900 FAX: (208) 327-7866

PHILIP E. BATT
GOVERNOR

February 26, 1997 KARL J. DREHER
DIRECTOR

Bruce Larson

241 S Main

Soda Springs ID 83217

Re: Don Rigby Water Rights 29-07636, 29-07637, 29-07001
Dear Mr. Larson:

I have recently completed a summary of ground water
discharge measurements and volume withdrawal estimates for wells
in the Bancroft-Lund area, Water District 13-T. The summary is
attached to this letter and was presented at the water district
meeting on February 24 in Grace.

Discharge measurements and volume estimates were made for
the three wells which have been developed under permits 29-07636
and 29-07637. These three wells are known by Mr. Rigby as # 1
Well, 0ld Faithful #2, and the Pond Well. Measurements were also
made for the well known as 0ld Faithful, which is the well
developed under license 29-07001. Burke Scholer and I conducted
the measurements for these wells on September 25, 1996. All four
wells are tied together and pump into a common mainline system or
manifold. Surface water can also be pumped into the mainline
system and commingled with the ground water. Surface water was
not pumped or commingled with any ground water during our
measurements. It was our understanding that Mr. Rigby operated
the system at this time in a way that allowed us to measure the
wells at or near their maximum capacities, and that these flows
are representative of normal flows.

The total measured discharge from the three wells under
permits 29-07636 and 29~07637 was 6.26 cfs. 01d Faithful #2
produced most of this flow, or 4.92 cfs (2209 gpm). The # 1 well
produced 1.08 cfs (485 gpm), while the Pond well produce only
0.26 cfs (117 gpm). We observed that the Pond well was valved
back considerably. The energy to flow ratio for this well was
very high, making the well very inefficient in terms of energy
use. Maximum discharge measured from 0ld Faithful was 5.81 cfs
(2609 gpm).

Volume estimates were made using discharge measurements,
energy demand measurements from the power meters (kw demand), and
power records supplied by Utah Power. The total estimated volume
for the three wells in 1996 under permits 29-07636 and 29-0737
was 808 acre-feet. These volume estimates may be somewhat
inaccurate since we were not able to compare our measured




discharge pressures with any measured discharge pressures during
the preceding irrigation Season. Operating pressures were not
tracked by Mr. Rigby or the watermaster during the irrigation
Season. Operation of the system with surface water may change
the pressures and volume estimates. Additionally, we noted that
the power meter for the 014 Faithful #2 well was changed some
time between June 5 and September 25, 1996. This may also affect
the estimate of volume from that well.

Conditions of approval under the permits, which were
approved in 1991, allow for two year incremental development
stages, not to exceed 240 acres per stage. For the six year
period from 1991 through 1996, the maximum rate of diversion
which could be developed is 14.4 cfs, and 2,160 acre-feet.

The rates of diversion developed and volume used as of this time
are considerably less than allowed under the permits. However,
based on the system Mr. Rigby has developed which commingles
ground water with surface water over the same lands, I believe
that the permits are being used in part as supplemental ground
water rights. The total number of acres being irrigated with
ground water under the two permits and license 29-07001 may
already exceed the total number of acres authorized by these
water rights. Also, the fairly high volume used under license
29-07001 may indicate that this right is also being used in part
as a supplemental well.

As outlined in correspondence to you last year, Mr. Rigby
should amend his permits to reflect the correct place of use and
point of diversion locations. A transfer should also be filed on
license 29-07001 to add the wells and any additional acreage
under the two permits. As the wells are all tied together, all
the rights should identify the same points of diversion and place
of use. The permits and license may have to be conditioned to
recognize permissible place of use. I encourage you to file the
amendments and transfer as soon as possible. Again, the Idaho
Falls office can assist you with this effort.

Please call me directly at 327-7864 if you have questions

about this matter.
Sincerely,
%\i—,ﬁ

Tim Luke

cc: Don Rigby
Harold Jones, Eastern Region




